NORTH CAROLINA CRIMINAL JUSTICE EDUCATION AND TRAINING STANDARDS COMMISSION

MINUTES

DATE: May 21, 2015

TIME: 9:00 A.M.

LOCATION: Wake Technical Community College- Public Safety Education Campus

Raleigh, North Carolina

SUBMITTED BY: Steven G. Combs

Director

MEMBERS PRESENT

MEMBERS ABSENT

Mr. Steve Johnson Chief Ira Jones Mr. James Festerman Mr. Brent Herron

Mr. Eddie Caldwell
Chief Scott Cunningham
Mr. Eddie Caldwell
Ms. Robin Pendergraft
Mr. Johnny Hawkins
Mr. Ray Davis
Mayor Bobby Kilgore
Mr. Charles Johnson
Dr. Robert Ruth
Captain Lee Farnsworth
Mr. Bob Myrick
Chief Patricia Bazemore
Chief Tim Ledford
Corporal Melissa Hinnant
Ms. Tracy McPherson

Corporal Melissa Hinnant
Ms. Tracy McPherson
Chief Tim Hayworth
Mr. Trey Robison
Chief Allen Smith
Mr. Jeff Welty
Colonel Bill Grey
Ms. Angela Williams
Lieutenant Yolanda Sparrow

Mr. Nathan Mizell Mr. James Fisher-Davis Mr. Charles Walston Chief Harold Medlock

I. CALL TO ORDER

Commission Chairman Bill Hollingsed called the meeting to order. Ms. Donna Byrd, Clerk to the Commission, administered the Oath of Office to one new member: Chief Harold Medlock of the Fayetteville Police Department, who represents the North Carolina Police Executives Association. Following the roll call, Chairman Hollingsed declared that a quorum was present and welcomed all visitors to the Commission meeting. Chairman Hollingsed read the Ethics Responsibility into the minutes.

Chairman Hollingsed personally thanked Ms. Betty Reynolds for hosting the Commission at the Wake Technical Community College Public Safety Education Campus.

II. AWARDING OF ADVANCED CERTIFICATES [Agenda Memorandum No. 02-15]

Chairman Bill Hollingsed reported that staff had evaluated the applications of all one hundred and eight (108) candidates. There were ninety-eight (98) candidates for the Advanced Law Enforcement Certificate and ten (10) candidates for the Advanced Criminal Justice Certificate. He noted that each of these applicants had met the requirements to receive the Advanced Certificate and the Advanced Certificate pin.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Robin Pendergraft that the Commission award the Advanced Law Enforcement Certificate or Advanced Criminal Justice Certificate to each named individual. The MOTION was seconded by Commissioner Scott Cunningham and carried unanimously.

The following individuals were present to personally receive their Advanced Law Enforcement and Advanced Criminal Justice Certificates:

Robert Wayne Estes Cary Police Department

Presented by Chief Pat Bazemore

Donna Faye Pell Cary Police Department

Presented by Chief Pat Bazemore

Alfred L. Collins Lumberton Police Department

Presented by Chief Michael McNeil

Megan D. Gray-Doxsie Morrisville Police Department

Presented by Commissioner Hollingsed

Benson Douglas Wise Sanford Police Department

Presented by Commissioner Hollingsed

Joshua R. Layhew Selma Police Department

Presented by Commissioner Hollingsed

Johnathan Brian Solomon Selma Police Department

Presented by Commissioner Hollingsed

Ricky Vernel Watson, Jr. UNC Hospitals Police

Presented by Commissioner Hollingsed

Delano A. Blaizes, Jr. NCDPS/Department of Adult Corrections

Presented by Commissioner Hollingsed

III. MINUTES OF FEBRUARY 13TH AND MARCH 23, 2015 MEETINGS

Chairman Hollingsed entertained a motion to approve the minutes of the previous Commission meeting.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Allen Smith that the Commission approve the minutes of the February 13 and March 23, 2015 meetings as mailed. The MOTION was seconded by Commissioner Melissa Hinnant and carried unanimously.

IV. STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS

A. Executive Committee - Chairman Eddie Caldwell

Chairman Caldwell reported that the Executive Committee met on Wednesday, May 20, 2015, at the Wake Technical Community College - Public Safety Education Campus, Raleigh, North Carolina.

Chairman Caldwell reported that House Bill 595 passed the House of Representatives and the Senate. He explained that the Senate would return the House Bill to the House of Representatives for revisions and then to the Governor for his signature.

Chairman Caldwell reported that the legislature was reviewing the implementation and use of body worn cameras by local and state law enforcement officers. He stated that additional information would be forthcoming.

Chairman Caldwell asked Director Steven Combs to give an update on the Criminal Justice Standards Division. A copy of his written report is attached.

Chairman Caldwell asked Deputy Director Wayne Ayers to give an update on the Justice Academy. A copy of his written report is attached.

B. Education and Training Committee – Chairperson Robin Pendergraft

Chairperson Pendergraft reported that the Education and Training Committee met on Wednesday, May 20, 2015 at Wake Technical Community College, Raleigh, North Carolina.

Chairperson Pendergraft reported that Commissioner Steve Johnson was appointed as the Vice-Chairman of the Education and Training Committee.

Deputy Director Trevor Allen presented the proposed rule changes for: 12 NCAC 09C .0401 – Certification of Criminal Justice Schools; 12 NCAC 09C .0206 – Summary Suspensions; 12 NCAC 09A .0103 – Definitions; 12 NCAC 09B .0401 – Time Requirements for Completion of Training; 12 NCAC 09B .0403 – Evaluation for Training Waiver; 12 NCAC 09B .0106 – Documentation of Educational Requirements; 12 NCAC 09B .0203 – Admission of Trainees; 12 NCAC 09B .0302 – General Instructor Certification; 12 NCAC 09B .0501 – Certification of School Directors; 12 NCAC 09G .0204 – Education; 12 NCAC 09G .0308 – General Instructor Certification; 12 NCAC 09G .0405 – Certification of School Directors; 12 NCAC 09B .0502 – Terms and Conditions of School Director Certification; 12 NCAC 09E .0109 – In-Service Training Coordinator Requirements; 12 NCAC 09B .0232 – Specialized Subject Control/Arrest Techniques Instructor Training and 12 NCAC 09B .0233 – Specialized Physical Fitness Instructor Training.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Pendergraft that the Commission authorize the Planning and Standards Committee to conduct a rule-making hearing to amend rule 12 NCAC 09C .0401 – Certification of Criminal Justice Schools as follows: Modify the title of the rule to read "Accreditation of Criminal Justice Schools" and Modify the language throughout the rule as follows: Change the word "Certification" to "Accreditation"; Change the word "Recertification" to Reaccreditation"; Remove paragraph (a) that establishes the sub-committee based on the recommendation of the staff; seconded by Commissioner Scott Cunningham. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Pendergraft that the Commission authorize the Planning and Standards Committee to conduct a rule-making hearing to amend rule 12 NCAC 09C .0206 – Summary Suspension; as follows: Add paragraph (f) that provides the Director the authority to summarily suspend on behalf of the Commission, a concealed handgun instructor certification when the instructor is found to have failed to deliver a concealed carry handgun training course in conformity with rule 12 NCAC 09F .0102 and 12 NCAC 09F .0105. In addition, the subparagraphs (1) and (2) of paragraph (f), allow the Director to issue a "Cease and Desist Notice" to the instructor until the training is brought into compliance and allows the instructor to appeal the Director's suspension to the Probable Cause Committee; seconded by Commissioner Cunningham. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Pendergraft that the Commission authorize the Planning and Standards Committee to conduct a rule-making hearing to amend the rules as follows: 12 NCAC 09A .0103 – Definitions: Add a new paragraph (1) which defines the term "Active Duty Military" and Re-number the remaining paragraphs sequentially; 12 NCAC 09B .0401 – Time Requirements for the Completion of Training: Add a new paragraph (e) which allows a trainee who is on active military duty and has completed BLET in its entirety, to be eligible for a probationary certification, in accordance with the provisions of 12 NCAC 09C .0303, within one year of separation from active duty military; and 12 NCAC 09B .0403 – Evaluation for Training Waiver - Modify the language in paragraph (a), subparagraph (17a) to address active duty members of the armed forces. As recommended by the staff, Add a subparagraph (18) of paragraph (a) which further addresses the probationary certification of active duty military members who complete BLET and annual in-service training requirements; seconded by Commissioner Cunningham. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Pendergraft that the Commission authorize the Planning and Standards Committee to conduct a rule-making hearing to amend the following rules: 12 NCAC 09B .0106 – Documentation of Educational Requirements, 12 NCAC 09B .0203 – Admission of Trainees, 12 NCAC 09B .0302 – General Instructor Certification; 12 NCAC 09B .0501 – Certification of School Directors, 12 NCAC 09G .0204 – Education, 12 NCAC 09G .0308 – General Instructor Certification, 12 NCAC 09G .0405 – Certification of School Directors as follows: Modify the language in the above rules in order to accurately define high school equivalency requirements and remove the wording "GED" and/or General Educational Development" as recommended by staff; seconded by Commissioner Cunningham. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Pendergraft that the Commission authorize the Planning and Standards Committee to conduct a rule-making hearing to amend 12 NCAC 09B .0502 in order to specify certain requirements for School Directors to deliver Specialized Instructor Training and Speed Measurement Instrument Instructor Training programs as follows: Add a paragraph that outlines that all School Directors participate in annual training provided by the division staff; maintain current training materials of all courses delivered and perform all duties required in rule 12 NCAC 09B .0202; seconded by Commissioner Cunningham. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Pendergraft that the Commission authorize the Planning and Standards Committee to conduct a rule-making hearing to amend 12 NCAC 09E .0109 – In-Service Training Coordinator Requirements as follows: Modify the language in the rule as recommended by the staff in order to allow agencies to have more than one in-service training coordinator; seconded by Commissioner Cunningham. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Pendergraft that the Commission authorize the Planning and Standards Committee to conduct a rule-making hearing to amend 12 NCAC 09B .0232 – Specialized Subject Control/Arrest Techniques Instructor Training to change the course training hours from 78 to 75 and to modify topical outline in order to accurately reflect the course content; seconded by Commissioner Cunningham. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Pendergraft that the Commission authorize the Planning and Standards Committee to conduct a rule-making hearing to amend 12 NCAC 09B .0233 – Specialized Physical Fitness Instructor Training to modify the topical outline in order to accurately reflect the course content; seconded by Commissioner Cunningham. The MOTION carried.

Chairperson Pendergraft reported that on behalf of the Specialized Physical Fitness Instructor Training Committee, Mr. John Combs with the North Carolina Justice Academy presented the recommended changes to the topical listing in the current rule. The recommended changes provide an accurate reflection of the current course delivery. In addition, the Committee recommended the adoption of a revised POPAT Evaluation form for both BLET and the Specialized Physical Fitness Instructor Training Course.

Mr. Combs presented the recommended changes to the topical listing in the current rule. The recommended changes provide an accurate reflection of the current course delivery. In addition, the Committee recommended changing the course hours from 78 to 75 hours. This change will remove the three (3) one-hour supervised physical fitness workout that is currently in the course. The students are required to pre-qualify for the course at a 60th percentile fitness level. Removing the physical fitness sessions will reduce the physical workload, allowing the students additional rest in an already physically demanding program that utilizes physical skills session.

Also, Mr. Combs requested that the N.C. Justice Academy be granted pilot authority to deliver Specialized Subject Control/Arrest Techniques Instructor Training in accordance with the newly proposed rule change until the rule change takes effect. The Committee approved these requests.

Chairperson Pendergraft reported that on behalf of the School Accreditation Subcommittee, Commissioner Tracy McPherson recommended the reaccreditation of the following institutions for a period of five years in accordance with 12 NCAC 09B .0200 and 12 NCAC 09C .0401 for the following: Cary Police Department – SMI - renewal; Davidson Community College – BLET, SMI and General Instructor Training – renewal; Haywood Community College – BLET – renewal; Johnston Community College – BLET, SMI and General Instructor Training – renewal; Randolph Community College – BLET, SMI and General Instructor Training – renewal and Stanly Community College – BLET and SMI – renewal. The Committee approved these requests.

Mr. Tim Pressley, Division staff recommended the addition of three speed measuring instruments to the currently listing of approved instruments outlined in Appendix A of the Supplement for Speed Measuring Instrument Training Courses. The three approved instruments are: "Stalker Patrol" moving/stationary RADAR, "Stalker LIDAR XS" stationary LIDAR and "Stalker LIDAR XLR" stationary LIDAR.

The Committee recommended a revision to the language concerning the daily setup procedures and calibration routine for the Kustom Signals Inc. "Tracker" time-distance instrument in order to make the procedure more efficient. This revision will be added to Appendix C of the Supplement for Speed Measuring Instrument Training Courses. The denied instruments are: MPH Industries, Inc. – "Speedgun Pro" moving/stationary RADAR system; DragonEye Technology Inc., "DragonEye Compact" stationary LIDAR instrument; DragonEye Technology Inc., "DragonEye Speed" stationary LIDAR instrument; and Laser Technologies, Inc., "TruSpeed S" stationary LIDAR instrument. Mr. Pressley also provided information and a status regarding the current appeal of the denial of the DragonEye Technology Instruments to the Committee. The Committee approved these requests.

Chairperson Pendergraft reported that on behalf of the BLET Revision Committee, Ms. Jennifer Fisher with the North Carolina Justice Academy, requested the approval of the following major revisions to the BLET training curriculum: Domestic Violence Response – various revisions were made to the training objectives and the content and clarifications on both NCGS §50B and §50C laws. A new video and a revised handout were added; Elements of Criminal Law – revisions were made to the training objectives and content to reflect statutory changes; Firearms – one training objective was added and content was revised. The BLET Night Course of Fire was revised to remove the flashlight while shooting with the support hand at the five yard line. In addition, a requirement was added that trainees must demonstrate the ability to draw, fire and reload the handgun with their support hand only; Law Enforcement Driver Training – minor revisions to the content and handout. A revision was made to the Course Description Packet to add a safety barrier to the current cone practice/testing courses in the program and Physical Fitness Training – revisions were made to the height requirement of the four foot fence from ± 3 inches to + 5 inches, video and a handout were revised. The Committee approved these requirements.

Chairperson Pendergraft concluded her report by stating that Ms. Fisher requested approval of the following minor revisions to the BLET training curriculum: Civil Process: handouts revised to reflect statutory changes and updated AOC forms were added; Motor Vehicle Law – revisions were made to the content based upon statutory changes regarding mopeds; a video revised updated AOC forms were added and Rapid Deployment – revisions were made regarding the two-man entry and the video was revised.

C. Planning and Standards Committee – Chairman Scott Cunningham

Chairman Cunningham stated that there is pending legislation for rule 12 NCAC 09B .0701 – Military and Military Spouse Transferees. The Committee proceeded with a rule-making hearing to ensure a rule be in place should legislation efforts not pass. There was discussion regarding how military experience and training would be credited for law enforcement certification purposes. There was recommended language to be added at the end of the sentence (g) (3) (B) to convey "notwithstanding the break in training limitations of 09B .0403(a) (2), applicable to out-of-state transferees".

MOTION was made by Commissioner Cunningham that the Commission adopt the proposed rule amendment with language modification as described; seconded by Commissioner Bob Myrick. The MOTION carried.

Chairman Cunningham explained that changes to rule 12 NCAC 09B .0227 – Specialized Driver Instructor Training would increase training hours from 33 to 48 hours for Specialized Driver Instructors.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Cunningham that the Commission adopt the proposed rule amendment to 12 NCAC 09B .0227 to increase training hours from 33 to 48 hours for Specialized Driver Instructor; seconded by Commissioner Myrick. The MOTION carried.

Chairman Cunningham explained that rule 12 NCAC 09B .0235 – Basic Training – Juvenile Court Counselors and Chief Court Counselors and 12 NCAC 09B .0236 – Basic Training – Juvenile Justice Officers would need to be updated to be current with industry standards.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Cunningham that the Commission adopt the proposed rule amendments to 12 NCAC 09B .0235 and 12 NCAC 09B .0236; seconded by Commissioner Myrick. The MOTION carried.

Next, Chairman Cunningham explained that rule 12 NCAC 09B .0305 – Terms and Conditions of Specialized Instructor Certification would ensure that specialized physical fitness instructors and law enforcement firearms instructors maintain proficiency in their respective discipline.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Cunningham that the Commission adopt the proposed rule amendment to rule 12 NCAC 09B .0305; seconded by Commissioner Myrick. The MOTION carried.

Chairman Cunningham concluded his report by stating that rule 12 NCAC 09E .0105 – Minimum Training Specifications would update the annual in-service training topics for law enforcement officers.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Cunningham that the Commission adopt the proposed rule amendment to rule 12 NCAC 09E .0105 to update the annual in-service training topics for law enforcement officers; seconded by Commissioner Myrick. The MOTION carried.

D. Probable Cause Committee - Chairman Ray Davis

Chairman Davis reported that the Probable Cause Committee met on Tuesday, May 19th and Wednesday, May 20, 2015 at Wake Technical Community College in Raleigh, North Carolina.

He reported that the Committee reviewed a total of forty-three (43) cases. Probable cause was found in fifteen (15) cases and no probable cause in sixteen (16) cases. Six cases were continued for additional investigation. He related that the Committee found probable cause in six cases in which the Committee offered a lesser sanction of an "Official Written Reprimand."

MOTION was made by Commissioner Davis that the Commission accept a lesser sanction of agreement for Memorandum Number 15/033; seconded by Commissioner Angela Williams. The MOTION carried unanimously.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Davis that the Commission accept a lesser sanction of agreement for Memorandum Number 15/041; seconded by Commissioner Pat Bazemore. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Davis that the Commission accept a lesser sanction of agreement for Memorandum Number 15/045; seconded by Commissioner Bobby Kilgore. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Davis that the Commission accept a lesser sanction of agreement for Memorandum Number15/046; seconded by Commissioner Bazemore. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Davis that the Commission accept a lesser sanction of agreement for Memorandum Number15/062; seconded by Commissioner Bazemore. The MOTION carried

MOTION was made by Commissioner Davis that the Commission accept a lesser sanction of agreement for Memorandum Number15/063; seconded by Commissioner Bazemore. The MOTION carried

V. OTHER BUSINESS

None

VI. OLD BUSINESS

A. Old Business

None

B. Legal Counsel Report

Mr. Hal Askins distributed a document entitled "Pending Administrative Cases" for the membership's review.

C. Final Agency Decisions

Chairman Hollingsed noted that Mr. John Congleton, an Assistant Attorney General, would serve as the Commission's Legal Counsel for the Final Agency Decision.

Chairman Hollingsed read the Recusal Statement to the Commission members and reminded everyone that both the Petitioner and the Respondent would be limited to 30 minutes of oral argument.

1. Phillip Charles Ford

Mr. Ford was present and asked for a continuance of his case. Chairman Hollingsed entertained a motion.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Caldwell that the Commission continue Phillip Charles Ford's case until the August meeting; seconded by Commissioner James Fisher-Davis. The MOTION carried.

2. Gene Arthur Pulley

Mr. William Hart, Jr. presented oral argument regarding the case against Mr. Pulley.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Lee Farnsworth that the Commission go into Closed Session; seconded by Commissioner Melissa Hinnant. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Pendergraft that the Commission return to Open Session; seconded by Commissioner Farnsworth. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Trey Robison that the Commission adopt the Proposed Final Agency Decision with modification to deny/suspend Gene Arthur Pulley's criminal justice officer certification for a period of not less than five years from the date this ORDER is signed; seconded by Commissioner Jeff Welty. The MOTION carried. See Attachment I for the Commission's Final Agency Decision and Attachment II for the roll call vote.

3. Richard Frank Dambakly

Ms. Joy Strickland presented oral argument regarding the case against Mr. Dambakly.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Cunningham that the Commission go into Closed Session; seconded by Commissioner Pendergraft. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Cunningham that the Commission return to Open Session; seconded by Commissioner Pendergraft. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Hinnant that the Commission adopt the Proposed Final Agency Decision to deny Richard Frank Dambakly's application for law enforcement officer certification for not less than five years for making material misrepresentations on his June 22, 2013 and July 12, 2013 Personal History Statement (Form F-3); seconded by Commissioner Myrick. The MOTION carried. See Attachment III for the Commission's Final Agency Decision and Attachment IV for the roll call vote.

4. William Lee Boone

Ms. Joy Strickland presented oral argument regarding the case against Mr. Boone.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Cunningham that the Commission go into Closed Session; seconded by Commissioner Charles Johnson. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Cunningham that the Commission return to Open Session; seconded by Commissioner Nathan Mizell. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Bob Ruth that the Commission adopt the Proposed Final Agency Decision as written by legal counsel; seconded by Commissioner Charles Johnson. The MOTION carried. See Attachment V for the Commission's Final Agency Decision and Attachment VI for the roll call vote.

5. Robert James Roy

Mr. William Hart, Jr. presented oral argument regarding the case against Mr. Roy.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Cunningham that the Commission go into Closed Session; seconded by Commissioner Ruth. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Cunningham that the Commission return to Open Session; seconded by Commissioner Hinnant. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Pendergraft that the Commission adopt the Administrative Law Judge's Decision to not revoke Robert James Roy's justice officer certification for lack of good moral character and not revoke his juvenile justice officer certification for lack of good moral character. The Commission approved his application for certification; seconded by Commissioner Welty. The MOTION carried. See Attachment VII for the Commission's Final Agency Decision and Attachment VIII for the roll call vote.

6. Aisha Christina Burston

Mr. William Hart, Jr. presented oral argument regarding the case against Ms. Burston.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Cunningham that the Commission go into Closed Session; seconded by Commissioner Pendergraft. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Cunningham that the Commission return to Open Session; seconded by Commissioner Farnsworth. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Welty that the Commission adopt the Administrative Law Judge's Decision that the Petitioner entered in Wake County no evidence of admission of guilt. The Commission hereby ordered that no action be taken against Aisha Christina Burston; seconded by Commissioner Smith. The MOTION carried. See Attachment IX for the Commission's Final Agency Decision and Attachment X for the roll call vote.

7. Rachel Elisabeth Hoffman

Ms. Strickland presented oral argument regarding the case against Ms. Hoffman

MOTION was made by Commissioner Cunningham that the Commission go into Closed Session; seconded by Commissioner Mizell. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Cunningham that the Commission return to Open Session; seconded by Commissioner Smith. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Hinnant that the Commission adopt the Administrative Law Judge's Decision. The Commission adopted the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law that Rachel Elisabeth Hoffman's law enforcement officer certification be granted subject to a one year period of probation on the condition that Ms. Hoffman does not violate any law (other than infractions and minor traffic offenses) of this state or any other state, any federal laws, any ordinances, any rules of this commission, the Company and Campus Police Program or the North Carolina Sheriffs' Education and Training Standards Commission. This period of probation begins on the date this ORDER is signed; seconded by Commissioner Fisher-Davis. The MOTION carried. See Attachment XI for the Commission's Final Agency Decision and Attachment XII for the roll call vote.

8. Charles Cornelius Gunning

Ms. Strickland presented oral argument regarding the case against Mr. Gunning.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Ruth that the Commission go into Closed Session; seconded by Commissioner Hinnant. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Cunningham that the Commission return to Open Session; seconded by Commissioner Farnsworth. The MOTION carried.

MOTION was made by Commissioner Pendergraft that the Commission adopt the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law that it is hereby ORDERED that the Charles Cornelius Gunning's application for law enforcement officer certification is denied; seconded by Commissioner Hinnant. The MOTION carried. See Attachment XIII for the Commission's Final Agency Decision and Attachment XIV for the roll call vote.

VII. DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Chairman Hollingsed advised that the next Commission meeting is scheduled for August 20-21, 2015 at the Wake Technical Community College, Public Safety Education Campus in Raleigh, NC.

VIII. MOTION TO ADJOURN

MOTION was made by Commissioner Cunningham that the Commission adjourn; seconded by Commissioner Sparrow. The MOTION carried unanimously.